Before the

Administrative Hearing Commission

State of Missouri

MISSOURI HIGHWAYS AND 
)

TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION, 
)



)



Petitioner,
)




)


vs.

)

No. 09-0665 MC



)

BOBBY JOE DAVIS,  d/b/a
)

DAVIS FARMS,
 
)




)



Respondent. 
)

DECISION 


Bobby Joe Davis, d/b/a Davis Farms, violated state law and federal regulations.  We grant the motion for summary decision filed by the Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission (“the MHTC”).
Procedure


The MHTC filed a complaint on May 11, 2009.  Davis was personally served with a copy of the complaint and our notice of complaint/notice of hearing on September 17, 2009.  Davis did not file an answer to the complaint.  


On November 18, 2009, the MHTC filed a motion for summary decision.  Our Regulation 1 CSR 15-3.446(5) provides that we may decide this case without a hearing if the 
MHTC establishes facts that (a) Davis does not dispute and (b) entitle the MHTC to a favorable decision.


We gave Davis until December 3, 2009, to respond to the motion, but he did not respond.  The following facts as established by the MHTC are undisputed.
Findings of Fact

1. Davis is a sole proprietor whose principal place of business is located in Howell County, Missouri, at 2517 State Route U, Willow Springs, Missouri 65793.
2. On August 4, 2008, Davis operated a commercial motor vehicle, a 1997 Peterbilt, with a gross vehicle weight rating (“GVWR”) of 46,007 pounds, in intrastate commerce transporting property (logs) from Manes, Missouri, to Mountain View, Missouri, before Davis had implemented a random alcohol and/or controlled substances testing program for his drivers.  On this date, Davis failed to maintain the required responses to the employer’s inquiries concerning the driver’s driving record in the driver’s qualification file; failed to keep the minimum records of inspection and vehicle maintenance for each vehicle operated; and failed to complete a driver vehicle inspection report.
3. On August 8, 2008, Davis’ employee, Billy Joe Davis, operated a 1997 Kenworth, with a GVWR of 48,000 pounds, in intrastate commerce transporting property (logs) from Manes, Missouri, to Mountain View, Missouri.  On this date, Davis failed to maintain the required responses to the employer’s inquiries concerning the driver’s driving record in the driver’s qualification file.

Conclusions of Law


We have jurisdiction to hear the MHTC’s complaint.
  The MHTC must show by clear and satisfactory evidence that Davis has violated the law.
 

Count I:  Violation of 49 CFR § 382.305 (Testing Program)
The MHTC asserts that Davis violated 49 CFR § 382.305(a) on August 4, 2008.  The MHTC has the authority to enforce Part 382 of Title 49 of the Code of Federal Regulations.
   Regulation 49 CFR § 382.107 defines “commercial motor vehicle” and “employer”:

Commercial motor vehicle means a motor vehicle or combination of motor vehicles used in commerce to transport passengers or property if the vehicle--

(1) Has a gross combination weight rating of 11,794 or more kilograms (26,001 or more pounds) inclusive of a towed unit with a gross vehicle weight rating of more than 4,536 kilograms (10,000 pounds)[.]

*   *   *

Employer means a person or entity employing one or more employees (including an individual who is self-employed) that is subject to DOT agency regulations requiring compliance with this part.  The term, as used in this part, means the entity responsible for overall implementation of DOT drug and alcohol program requirements, including individuals employed by the entity who take personnel actions resulting from violations of this part and any applicable DOT agency regulations.  Service agents are not employers for the purposes of this part.

Because the Peterbilt had a GVWR of 46,007 pounds, and was used in commerce to transport property, it is a commercial motor vehicle.  Davis was an employer and an employee as defined in the regulation.
Regulation 49 CFR § 382.305(a) provides:

Every employer shall comply with the requirements of this section.  Every driver shall submit to random alcohol and controlled substance testing as required in this section.
Because Davis did not have an alcohol and controlled substance testing program in place on August 4, 2008, he violated 49 CFR § 382.305(a).  

Count II:  Violation of 49 CFR § 391.51 (Driver’s File)

The MHTC asserts that Davis violated 49 CFR § 391.51(b)(2) on August 4 and 8, 2009.  Section 307.400.1 provides:

It is unlawful for any person to operate any commercial motor vehicle as defined in Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 390.5, either singly or in combination with a trailer, as both vehicles are defined in Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 390.5, unless such vehicles are equipped and operated as required by Parts 390 through 397, Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, as such regulations have been and may periodically be amended, whether intrastate transportation or interstate transportation.
(Emphasis added).  49 CFR § 390.5 provides:

Commercial motor vehicle means any self-propelled or towed motor vehicle used on a highway in interstate commerce to transport passengers or property when the vehicle —

(1) Has a gross vehicle weight rating or gross combination weight rating, or gross vehicle weight or gross combination weight, of 4,536 kg (10,001 pounds) or more, whichever is greater[.]

*   *   *

For-hire motor carrier means a person engaged in the transportation of goods or passengers for compensation.

*   *   *

Motor carrier means a for-hire carrier or a private motor carrier.[
]

Because both vehicles had a GVWR of 10,001 pounds or more, they were commercial motor vehicles under this definition.  Because Davis was hired to transport property, he was a motor carrier.  


49 CFR § 391.51 provides:    

(b) The qualification file for a driver must include:

*   *   *

(2) A copy of the motor vehicle record received from each State pursuant to § 391.23(a)(1)[.] 
Davis did not maintain the required records in the drivers’ qualification files.  He violated 49 CFR § 391.51(b)(2) on two occasions.  Because Davis violated 49 CFR § 391.51(b)(2), we conclude that the vehicle was not equipped and operated as required by Parts 390 through 397, and Davis violated § 307.400.1.
Count III:  Violation of 49 CFR § 396.3 (Vehicle Records)

The MHTC asserts that Davis violated 49 CFR § 396.3(b) and § 307.400.  49 CFR 
§ 396.3 states:
(b) Required records.  Motor carriers, except for a private motor carrier of passengers (nonbusiness), must maintain, or cause to be maintained, records for each motor vehicle they control for 30 consecutive days.  Intermodal equipment providers must maintain or cause to be maintained, records for each unit of intermodal equipment they tender or intend to tender to a motor carrier.  These records must include:
(1) An identification of the vehicle including company number, if so marked, make, serial number, year and tire size.  In addition, if the motor vehicle is not owned by the motor carrier, the record shall identify the name of the person furnishing the vehicle;

(2) A means to indicate the nature an due date of the various inspection and maintenance operations to be performed;

(3) A record of inspection, repairs, and maintenance indicating their date and nature; and

(4) a record tests conducted on pushout windows, emergency doors, and emergency door marking lights on buses.
Davis did not maintain records of vehicle inspection and maintenance.  He violated 49 CFR 
§ 396.3(b) on the one occasion alleged in the complaint.  Because Davis violated 49 CFR 
§ 396.3(b), we conclude that the vehicle was not equipped and operated as required by Parts 390 through 397, and Davis violated § 307.400.1.

Count IV:  Violation of 49 CFR § 396.11 (Inspection Report)


The MHTC asserts that Davis violated 49 CFR § 396.11 and § 307.400.  49 CFR 
§ 396.11 states:

(a) Report required.

(1) Motor carriers.  Every motor carrier must require its drivers to report, and every driver must prepare a report in writing at the completion of each day’s work on each vehicle operated.  The report must cover at least the following parts and accessories [list follows.]

Davis failed to complete the required inspection report.  He violated 49 CFR § 396.11 on the one occasion alleged in the complaint.  Because Davis violated 49 CFR § 396.11, we conclude that the vehicle was not equipped and operated as required by Parts 390 through 397, and Davis violated § 307.400.1.
Summary


On August 4, 2008, Davis:

· violated 49 CFR § 382.305(a) by failing to have an alcohol and controlled substance testing program in place.
· violated 49 CFR § 391.51(b)(2) and § 307.400.1 by failing to maintain the required records in the drivers’ qualification files.  
· violated 49 CFR § 396.3(b) and § 307.400.1 by failing to maintain records of vehicle inspections and maintenance.  
· violated 49 CFR § 396.11(a) and § 307.400.1 by failing to complete a driver vehicle inspection report.

On August 8, 2008, Davis:

· violated 49 CFR § 391.51(b)(2) and § 307.400.1 by failing to maintain the required records in the drivers’ qualification files.  
We grant the motion for summary decision and cancel the hearing.


SO ORDERED on December 16, 2009.



________________________________



NIMROD T. CHAPEL, JR.


Commissioner

�ITT Commercial Fin. Corp. v. Mid-Am. Marine Supply Corp., 854 S.W.2d 371, 380-82 (Mo. banc 1993).  


	�Sections 621.040 and 226.008.4.  Statutory references are to RSMo Supp. 2008 unless otherwise noted.  


	�Section 622.350.


	�Section 226.008.2(1) and §§ 390.201 and 622.550, RSMo 2000.


	�Recent amendments to this regulation do not affect these definitions.
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